
 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190; Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080, Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

 

 

     

  

 

                                                                                                                                                                                          
  

AGENDA 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

Regular Board Meeting 

 Tuesday, January 24, 2017 

Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 

 

 
   9:00 AM Call to Order  

   Approval of Minutes 

 January 10, 2017 Board Meeting 

 

   Review Agenda 

 

Consent Agenda  

       

Assessor 

a.  Purchase Authorization of Office Chairs from Husk Office Supplies & Furniture 

Auditor 

b. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0111-101, Dept. 000    

Clerk  

c. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0146-101, Dept. 000  

Commissioners  

d. Lobbying Agreement w/Gordon Thomas Honeywell Governmental Affairs     

e. Agreement w/Thomas Honeywell Governmental Affairs for Project Development Services   

f. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0153-101, Dept. 000 

District Court  

g. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 111 

Facilities 

h. Award to Brutzmans Inc for the purchase of Office Furniture for the Tenant Improvement 

Project @ the Justice Center  

i. Contract w/Booth & Sons Construction, Inc for Tenant Improvement Project @ the Justice 

Center 

j. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 110  

k. Notice to Lowest Responsible Bidder for Hazardous Materials Abatement Project for Old 

Engineering Building 

Juvenile 

l. Contract w/SimplexGrinnell for Fire Alarm Inspection & Testing  

m. Contract w/Yoder Inc dba Coffeys Refrigeration for Kitchen Equipment Repair 

n. Contract w/Sierra Electric Inc for Electrical Repair  

o. Contract w/Western States CAT for Engine & Generator Maintenance & Repair  

p. Contract w/NCIC Inmate Communications for Facility Inmate Telephone Services  

q. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0115-101, Dept. 171 

r. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0115-101, Dept. 171 to 172  

Jerome Delvin 
District 1 

Shon Small 
District 2 

James Beaver 
District 3 

Board of County Commissioners 
BENTON COUNTY 

David Sparks 
County Administrator 

 
Loretta Smith Kelty 

Deputy County Administrator             

mailto:commissioners@co.benton.wa.us
WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Text Box
To view items in detail, please click on the highlighted area. 



Agenda - Board of County Commissioners 

January 24, 2017 

Page 2 

 

 

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190;   Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080,   Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

 

s. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 138  

Office of Public Defense 

t. Agreement w/M Matkowski for Private Investigator Services    

Parks      
u. Payment Authorization to Total Energy Management for HVAC Services @ Horn Rapids 

Park   

v. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 126 to Dept. 110    

Prosecuting Attorney 

w. Memorandum of Agreement w/Benton County Deputy Sheriff’s Guild 

Public Safety 

x.  Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0148-101, Dept. 138   

Public Works 

y. Amendment No. 2 for Solid Waste Coordinated Prevention Grant w/Dept of Ecology    

z. Construction Plans for Sagebrush Road Safety Project 

aa. Construction Plans for Shuler Road Culvert Replacement     

bb. Acceptance of Work Performed by Solid Structures LLC for Storage Sheds  

cc. Transfer of Funds from Flood Control Fund (0103101) to the Road Fund (0101101) 

dd. Purchase of Tires & Services from Pasco Tire Factory 

ee. Purchase of Public Safety Communications Equipment from Advanced Paging & 

Communications 

ff. Authorization to Proceed to Bid for Purchase of Herbicides  

Sheriff 

gg. 2016 Federal Equitable Sharing Agreement & Certification Report     

hh. Salary Request Statement  

ii. Purchase of Portable Communication Equipment from Motorola Solutions  

jj. Intergovernmental Agreement Modification w/US Marshals Service for Housing of Federal 

Detainees   

Superior Court 

kk. Line Item Transfer, Fund 0000-101, Depts. 123 & 115  

Sustainable Development 

ll. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0135-101, Dept. 000    

mm. Letter of Support to EVITA for Electric Vehicle Charging Stations 

 

Scheduled Business  

 

Unscheduled Visitors 

   Other Business    
 

    

 

    

mailto:commissioners@co.benton.wa.us
WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight



 - 1 - 

MINUTES 

 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 

Regular Board Meeting 

Tuesday, January 10, 2017, 9:00 a.m. 

Commissioners’ Conference Room  

Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 

 

 

Present: Chairman James Beaver 

  Commissioner Jerome Delvin 

  Commissioner Shon Small  

  County Administrator David Sparks   

  Clerk of the Board Cami McKenzie 

 

Benton County Employees Present During All or a Portion of the Meeting:  County Engineer 

Matt Rasmussen; Assistant County Engineer Robert Blain; DPA Ryan Brown; Clerk Josie Delvin; 

Assessor Bill Spencer; Public Services Administrator Fred Bowen; Clark Posey, Assistant 

Planning Manager; Jerrod MacPherson, Assistant Planning Manager; Erhiza Rivera, Deputy 

Treasurer; IT Manager Teri Holmes; DPA Ryan Brown; District Court Judge Dan Kathren.   

 

Approval of Minutes 

 

The Minutes of December 20, 2016 were approved.   

 

Consent Agenda 

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Small moved to approve the consent agenda items “a” through “oo”.    

Commissioner Delvin seconded and upon vote, the Board approved the following: 
 

Auditor 

a. Cancellation of Unclaimed Warrants  

b. Surplus of Personal Property    

Clerk 
c. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 106  

Commissioners  

d. Canvassing Board Appointment    

e. Non Bargaining General Increase of Wages for 2017 

f. 2017 Wage Increase Administrators, Managers & Assistant Managers 

g. Adoption of Flat Monthly Payments for  2017/2018 Juvenile Operating & Facilities Budget 

Facilities  
h. Payment Authorization to Moon Security Services Inc. for Fire & Burglar Alarm Services 

i. Notice of Lowest Bidder for Purchase of Office Furniture ~ CB 16-14   

Human Services 

j. Fifth Agreement Amendment w/Community Action Committee for Emergency Solutions Grant 

Information Technology 

k. Purchase of 2-Yr Autodesk Software Subscription Renewal from DLT Solutions, LLC 



 - 2 - 

l. Purchase of ArcGIS Desktop Licenses from Environmental Systems Research Institute Inc. for 

Public Works       

m. Support Contract for Cisco Equipment from CompuNet, Inc. 

n. Purchases of Computers/Printers/Scanners/Tablets/Licenses for Document Preservation  

Juvenile 

o. Amended Contract #1 w/Washington State Patrol for Criminal History Record Information 

Management  

p. Contract w/Tri-Cities Monitoring, Inc. for Armed Security Guard Services  

q. Contract w/City of Kennewick for Graffiti Abatement Program 

Office of Public Defense 

r. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 136       

s. Establishing Cost Share Rate to Divide Costs of Juvenile Dependency Public Defense Contracts 

Between Benton & Franklin Counties for 2017    

t. Amended District Court Public Defense Contract w/J Briggs  

u. District Court Public Defense Contract w/H Villani 

v. District Court Public Defense Contract Termination w/Z Goytowski  

w. District Court Public Defense Contract Termination w/A Pechtel 

x. Amended Superior Court Public Defense Contract w/T Orosco 

Personnel      
y. Contract Termination w/Mail Finance, A Neopost Company     

z. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0503-101, Dept. 000 

aa. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 114     

Prosecuting Attorney       
bb. Collective Bargaining Agreement w/AFSCME AFL-CIO for Appraiser Employees  

Public Safety 
cc. Agreement w/Partners for Early Learning for Building Resilience through Family Support 

dd. Agreement w/Tri-Cities Chaplaincy for Step-Up Program      

Public Works 

ee. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0114-101, Dept. 000      

ff. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0101-101, Dept. 500    

gg. Adoption of Road Department Shop Rate      

hh. Equipment Maintenance Agreement w/Benton County Fire District #6 

ii. Payment Authorization to D&D Tri-Rivers Excavating, Inc. for Kennewick Parking Lot 

jj. Speed Limit Traffic Control on Certain County Roads 

Sheriff 

kk. Salary Request Statement        

ll. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 121 to Dept. 120     

mm. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 125 

nn. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0116-101, Dept. 000 

Sustainable Development 

oo. Appointments to the Hanford Advisory Board 

 

Benton City Economic Development Update - postponed 

 

Yakima Basin Water Legislation Discussion  

 

Adam Fyall via/videoconference introduced Darryll Olsen, Columbia-Snake River Irrigators 

Association (CSRIA) and Mark Nielson, Benton Conservation District to discuss possible new 

legislation.   

 



 - 3 - 

Mr. Olsen discussed the following: 

 Water Law Rulings  

o Swinomish & Foster decision; Hirsh 

o Detrimental to what they were trying to do and affecting water rights transfers and 

exempt wells 

o CSRIA was issuing a briefing paper on WA State Supreme Court opinions; 

following up with a bill; looking at everything that existed as of yesterday and 

trying to address all the issues  

 

Mr. Nielson said it was not about water management but about growth management and they 

supported the bill being introduced by Columbia-Snake River Irrigators.   

 

Mr. Olsen asked if the counties (Benton & Franklin) were willing to get the interested parties 

together and go to Olympia and merge some of these things; they wanted to see more than one bill 

and put it all in one package for a comprehensive approach to deal with the three decisions that 

came out of the legislation.   

 

Commissioner Delvin discussed trying to get them on the legislative agenda next week if they 

were willing to go over to Olympia and said he would try to set something up and get back to them.   

 

Final Plat of Beverly Meadows Phase 2 – SUB 2016-006 

 

Clark Posey presented the final plat of Beverly Meadows Phase 2 for board approval.  He said all 

conditions of approval were satisfied and all signatures obtained.   

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Small moved to approve the Final Plat of Beverly Meadows Phase 2, 

SUB 2016-006 and authorize the Chairman to sign.  Commissioner Delvin seconded and upon 

vote, the motion carried.   

 

Discussion – Process for Appointing a District Court Judge  

 

Commissioner Delvin recommend the Board start the process of appointing someone for the 

position.  Mr. Sparks said there was a non-partisan process and in the past the Personnel 

Department had handled the advertisement; also they have asked the cities to be on the committee 

and come up with three or four names to pick from.   

 

Commissioner Small asked Judge Kathren if an appointment was necessary with the decline in 

cases.  Judge Kathren from the audience said that caseloads go up and down all the time but he 

had not felt any difference.  He said the State Judicial Office determined Benton County had a 

need of more than five judges and it was based on the number of hearings and things they actually 

handled.  He said as it stood, they unquestionably needed five judges and needed to fill that position 

as quickly as possible.   

 

The Board agreed to have them start the process and move forward.   

 

  



 - 4 - 

Appointment of Interim Treasurer 

 

Duane Davidson via/videoconference said he wanted to make the recommendation for Kirsten 

Yniguez for Interim Treasurer.  He said she was very involved in the process and tax collection 

and he felt she would be the best person for Interim Treasurer and had plans to run for the position 

in November.  He said she worked well with the current Deputy Erhiza Rivera and they would 

work well together for this transition team.  He said they were in the middle of a transition and 

conversion and seemed to be on track and the County would get its tax bills out on time and get 

paid.  He said they had a good team already in place along with IT and she would not do anything 

to hinder the process.   

 

Commissioner Delvin asked Commissioner Small for an update on the Republican Party 

recommendations and he also asked Mr. Davidson about appointing his deputy until that 

recommendation was made.   

 

Mr. Davidson said the Chief Deputy had not expressed an interest in engaging in the politics and 

that she was not going to run for Treasurer.  He said that Ms. Yniguez had submitted her paperwork 

to the Republican Party and she had enough expertise.  He also commented that Sam Schneider 

and Erhiza Rivera were working well as a team and Ms. Yniguez would not interfere with that 

process. 

 

Commissioner Small said he spoke to the Republican Party last night and they had a total of six 

applicants.  He said they reviewed the data and acknowledged there was not anyone on the list 

with the qualifications of Duane Davidson and they were looking at extending the process for 

another week.  He confirmed they should have a list of candidates by the first week of February.   

 

The Board opted not to go into executive session to evaluate the qualifications of candidates.   

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Small moved to take the recommendation of the Treasurer and appoint 

Kirsten Yniguez as the Interim Treasurer. Commissioner Delvin seconded. 

 

Discussion 

 

Commissioner Delvin expressed concern about the assurances of this new program and said that 

maybe Erhiza Rivera would want to speak on that to see if it was on track. 

 

Mr. Sparks commented that he would be happy to speak about what was going on based on his 32 

years of experience.   

 

Erhiza Rivera said they were currently working on December reports and they were in balancing 

and would get the reports out in the next few days to the taxing districts.  

 

Mr. Sparks questioned whether taxes should be distributed every $1,000 and Ms. Rivera said by 

the 10th (noted that was today).  Ms. Rivera indicated they were balancing and getting that on board 

and it was going through just fine.  She indicated the Assessor had already gone live and the next 

step was to start data entry in the system and balance on the December side and move forward 



 - 5 - 

with tax statements. She said the vendor was on board and Commissioner Small was there for the 

conference call.   

 

Commissioner Small asked Ms. Holmes to speak about some of the issues.   

 

Teri Holmes said the Treasurer recorded their manual entries for December and when they were 

input into Ascend the manual entries did not balance and that is what Sam Schneider was tracking 

down.   

 

Ms. Rivera said she would do what was necessary to help with the transition. 

 

Upon vote, the motion carried unanimously.   

 

Other Business 

 

Agreement with Employment Security Department 

 

Josie Delvin presented an extension of the agreement with Employment Security Department for 

the Clerk’s office to use for legal financial obligations.   

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Small moved to approve the amendment with Employment Security 

Department as presented.  Commissioner Delvin seconded and upon vote, the motion carried.   

 

Bob Olson Parkway 

 

Matt Rasmussen said the Board entered into an agreement with the City of Kennewick to 

participate in the construction of Bob Olson Parkway and they needed direction on how to pay the 

bill for $130,000. 

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Small moved to approve payment in the amount of $130,000 from the 

VIT fund to pay the contribution for the Bob Olson Parkway.  Commissioner Delvin seconded and 

upon vote, the motion carried.   

 

Contracts for Lobbying 

 

Commissioner Delvin said the contracts for lobbying would be presented at the January 24 meeting 

and they were already receiving reports from the lobbyist. 

 

Email from WSAC –Property Tax Reform 

 

Commissioner Delvin commented on the email received from WSAC to raise money for 

assessments for property tax reform.  He mentioned that different counties were contributing and 

he didn’t know if Benton County wanted to kick in anything.  

 

  



 - 6 - 

GCBH 

 

Commissioner Small commented that Ken Roughton was looking at reducing his workload and 

stepping away and they would be looking at replacing him and he would keep the board informed.   

 

County Claims 

 

CC 2016-19: Received on December 29, 2016 from Darren Shank 

CC 2017-01: Received on January 9, 2017 from Bernadine Warner 

 

Account Payables 

 

Check Date:  12/12/2016 

 

Procurement Cards #1216 

Total all funds:  $281,323.73 

 

Check Date 12/16/2016 

 

Warrants #149545-149721 

Total of all Funds $4,740.54 

 

Transfers #12161601-12161612 

Total of all Funds $481,877.10 

 

Warrants #149722-149906 

Total of all Funds $659,129.62 

 

Check Date 12/22/2016 

 

Transfers #12221601-12221608 

Total of all Funds $93,828.63 

 

Warrants #150115-150268 

Total of all Funds $533,258.47 

 

Check Date 12/30/2016 

 

Warrants #150407-150654 

Total of all Funds $5,078.80 

 

Transfers #12301602-12301608 

Total of all Funds $216,906.19 

 

Warrants #150660-150776 

Total of all Funds $205,570.71 



 - 7 - 

 

Check Date: 01/06/2017 

 

Warrant #: 150840-150841 

Total all funds: $4,583.58 

 

Payroll  

 

Check Date:  01/05/2017 

 

Warrant #: 240229-240276 

Direct Deposit #: 120323-120923 

Total all funds:  $2,182,492.11 

 

Payroll Deductions/Transfers 

Taxes #: 101170101-101170114 

Total all funds:  $1,954,114.97 

 

Payroll Deductions/Warrants 

Warrant #: 150842-150855 

Total all funds:  $322,351.05 

 

Total amounts approved by fund can be reviewed in the Benton County Auditor’s Office. 

 

Resolutions 

 
2017-001: Cancellation of Unclaimed Warrants  

2017-002: Surplus of Personal Property    

2017-003: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 106  

2017-004: Non Bargaining General Increase of Wages for 2017 

2017-005: 2017 Wage Increase Administrators, Managers & Assistant Managers 

2017-006: Adoption of Flat Monthly Payments for 2017/2018 Juvenile Operating & Facilities Budget 

2017-007: Payment Authorization to Moon Security Services Inc. for Fire & Burglar Alarm Services 

2017-008: Notice of Lowest Bidder for Purchase of Office Furniture ~ CB 16-14   

2017-009: Fifth Agreement Amendment w/Community Action Committee for Emergency Solutions 

Grant 

2017-009A: Purchase of 2-Yr Autodesk Software Subscription Renewal from DLT Solutions, LLC 

2017-010: Purchase of ArcGIS Desktop Licenses from Environmental Systems Research Institute Inc. 

for Public Works       

2017-011: Support Contract for Cisco Equipment from CompuNet, Inc. 

2017-012: Purchases of Computers/Printers/Scanners/Tablets/Licenses for Document Preservation  

2017-013: Amended Contract #1 w/Washington State Patrol for Criminal History Record Information 

Management  

2017-014: Contract w/City of Kennewick for Graffiti Abatement Program 

2017-015: Contract w/Tri-Cities Monitoring, Inc. for Armed Security Guard Services  

2017-016: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 136       

2017-017: Establishing Cost Share Rate to Divide Costs of Juvenile Dependency Public Defense 

Contracts Between Benton & Franklin Counties for 2017    



 - 8 - 

2017-018: Amended District Court Public Defense Contract w/J Briggs  

2017-019: District Court Public Defense Contract w/H Villani 

2017-020: District Court Public Defense Contract Termination w/Z Goytowski  

2017-021: District Court Public Defense Contract Termination w/A Pechtel 

2017-022: Amended Superior Court Public Defense Contract w/T Orosco 

2017-023: Contract Termination w/Mail Finance, A Neopost Company     

2017-024: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0503-101, Dept. 000 

2017-025: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 114     

2017-026: Collective Bargaining Agreement w/AFSCME AFL-CIO for Appraiser Employees  

2017-027: Agreement w/Partners for Early Learning for Building Resilience through Family Support 

2017-028: Agreement w/Tri-Cities Chaplaincy for Step-Up Program      

2017-029: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0114-101, Dept. 000      

2017-030: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0101-101, Dept. 500    

2017-031: Adoption of Road Department Shop Rate      

2017-032: Equipment Maintenance Agreement w/Benton County Fire District #6 

2017-033:          Payment Authorization to D&D Tri-Rivers Excavating, Inc. for Kennewick Parking Lot 

2017-034:          Speed Limit Traffic Control on Certain County Roads 

2017-035: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 121 to Dept. 120     

2017-036: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 125 

2017-037:          Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0116-101, Dept. 000 

2017-038:          Appointments to the Hanford Advisory Board 

2017-039:          Final Plat of Beverly Meadows Phase 2 – SUB 2016-006 

2017-040:          Appointment of Kirsten Yniguez as Interim Treasurer for Benton County  

2017-041:          Interagency Data Sharing Agreement Amendment #3 Between WA Employment Security  

                          Department and the Clerk’s Office 

 

There being no further business before the Board, the meeting adjourned at approximately 10:00 

a.m.  

 

_______________________________   ______________________________ 

Clerk of the Board      Chairman 

 



 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: 1/24/17     
Subject: Purchase of 

Office Chairs 
Prepared by:       M. Christen 
Reviewed by:              

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract _____ 
Pass Resolution  __X__  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
 
Consent Agenda            __X___  
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             ____  

   
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
The Assessor’s Office has recently purchased office task chairs due to the relocation in the coming spring 
2017.  These chairs were purchased to replace old, worn out chairs.       
 
SUMMARY 
See above. 
  
RECOMMENDATION 
Recommend that the resolution is passed.   
  
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Total cost not to exceed $9,401.50, including WSST. 
 
 
 
 

WEH
Text Box
a. Purchase Authorization of Office Chairs from Husk Office Supplies & Furniture



 cc: Assessor, Auditor                                        Prepared by: M. Christen

�

RESOLUTION 
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

IN THE MATTER OF AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF OFFICE CHAIRS FROM THE HUSK 
OFFICE SUPPLIES & FURNITURE, FOR THE ASSESSOR’S OFFICE. 

WHEREAS, per Benton County Resolution 2012-677, Section 2.0 Purchase or Lease of Supplies, 
Materials, or Equipment, “purchases or leases in this price range are to be approved by the BOCC 
pursuant to a written resolution signed by a majority of the BOCC.  Attached to said resolution shall be a 
copy of written quotations from at least three (3) vendors on the vendor list, unless the product is such 
that it is not reasonable to obtain three (3) price quotes”; and

WHEREAS, the current office chairs in the Prosser and Kennewick Assessor’s Offices are several years 
old, worn out and not ergonomic; and 

WHEREAS, the Assessor’s Office researched the cost of purchasing office task chairs from multiple 
vendors, including Office Depot, The Husk Office Supplies & Furniture, Brutzman’s Office Solutions and 
Harris Office Interiors Inc; and 

WHEREAS, The Husk Office Supplies & Furniture submitted a quote of $9,401.50 (including WSST) for 
both the Prosser and Kennewick Offices, for the chairs as identified in the attached quote; and 

WHEREAS, the Assessor’s Office has purchased similar chairs from Husk Office Furniture in the past, is  
pleased with the functionality and durability of the chairs, and desires to keep the same model of flexibility 
of interchanging between offices and areas of the office; and 

WHEREAS, The Assessor’s Office has purchased the chairs as identified in the attached quote from The 
Husk Office Supplies & Furniture.  NOW, THEREFORE,

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington, the 
Board concurs with the Assessor’s purchase and hereby authorizes payment of the office chairs as 
identified in the attached quote from The Husk Office Supplies & Furniture for the amount of $9,401.50 
(including WSST).  

Dated this __________________ day of ________________, 20___. 

________________________                
Chairman of the Board 

________________________ 
Member 

________________________ 
Member  

               
Constituting the Board of Commissioners 

of Benton County, Washington 
Attest....................................................... 





Dated this day of , 

Attest:

cc:  B. Chilton; Auditor; File CHILTON

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN 

ELECTION RESERVE FUND NUMBER 0111101

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that funds 

shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto.

Clerk of the Board

Chairman of the Board

Member

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.

WEH
Text Box
b. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0111-101, Dept. 000



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:

TRANSFER FROM: Dept. TRANSFER TO: Dept. 

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT

(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)

514.401 1163 Chief Deputy Auditor $6,875 514.401 1139 Office Supervisor - Prosser $1,826

1588 Temporary Help $9,477 1559 Office Assistant III $86

1585 Election Specialist $562

1586 Election Manager $419

1587 Office Assistant III $1,208

` 1591 Office Assistant III $1,387

1592 Office Assistant III $1

2102 Soc Sec (FICA) $1,611

2103 Medical Insurance $3,961

2104 Retirement $1,629

514.901 1559 Office Assistant III $88

1585 Election Specialist $562

1586 Election Manager $418

1587 Office Assistant III $1,207

1591 Office Assistant III $1,387

TOTAL $16,352 TOTAL $16,352

Explanation:

Prepared by: B. Chilton Date:  1/12/17

Approved q Denied q Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

This is for the 2015-2016 budget cycle.  To reconcile salaries and benefits, accounting for COLAs.

Auditor

Election Reserve

N/A

0111101



Dated this day of , 

Attest:

cc: Dept., Auditor, File, Prepared by: 

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN

CLERKS COLLECTION FUND NUMBER 0146101, DEPARTMENT NUMBER 000

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that funds

shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto.

Clerk of the Board

Chairman of the Board

Member

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.

WEH
Text Box
c. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0146-101, Dept. 000



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:

TRANSFER FROM:  Dept 000 TRANSFER TO:  Dept 000

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT

(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)

512.300 4905 Training $3,200 512.300 2103 Medical Insurance $3,200

TOTAL $3,200 TOTAL $3,200

Explanation:

Prepared by: Josie Delvin Date:  19-Jan-2017

Approved  Denied  Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

2015-2016 Budget

No Department

Clerks Collection

000

0146101



AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: Jan 24, 2017 

Subject: Consultant Contract with 

Gordon Thomas Honeywell 

Governmental Affairs 

Prepared by: Shyanne Faulconer
Reviewed by: Cami McKenzie 

TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract X 

Pass Resolution         X 

Pass Ordinance 

Pass Motion 

None  

Consent Agenda      X 

Public Hearing 

1st Discussion 

2nd Discussion 

Other  

SUMMARY 

On December 20, 2016 the Board of Commissioners made a motion to approve funding of a lobbying agreement. 

Gordon Thomas Honeywell Governmental Affairs was the consultant chosen to provide these services to the County, 

including: 

 Lobbying for State legislation that supports the general government services of the County

 Providing the County with legislative reports during session

 Providing the County with bill-tracking, accessed via the web

 Lobbying for or against State legislation issues impacting the County’s general government interests

 Working with stakeholder groups (such as WSAC) to support/oppose State legislation proposals

This contract shall begin on February 1, 2017 and terminate on December 31, 2017 unless amended by the parties. 

Contract is for a total amount not to exceed $30,000, to be billed to the County in a monthly in the amount of $2,500. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

Benton County has chosen to hire a consultant to provide the County with lobbying services for the duration of 2017, 

while providing the County with periodic reports during the legislative session and keeping the County appraised of 

any relevant issues in State legislation. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Sign and approve the contract and resolution contracting with Gordon Thomas Honeywell for lobbying consultant 

services. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

$30,000 total contract amount (to be invoiced to the County in a monthly rate of $2,500). 

WEH
Text Box
d. Lobbying Agreement w/Gordon Thomas Honeywell Governmental Affairs



 

Cc: Auditor; PA-Contract Compliance; Commissioners; Gordon Thomas Honeywell Faulconer 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 

 

IN THE MATTER OF SIGNING A CONSULTING AGREEMENT BETWEEN BENTON 

COUNTY, WASHINGTON AND GORDON THOMAS HONEYWELL GOVERNMENTAL 

AFFAIRS 

 

WHEREAS, on December 20, 2016, the Board of Benton County Commissioners approved funding 

for governmental affairs lobbying consultant services for Benton County; and 

 

WHEREAS, Benton County has selected Gordon Thomas Honeywell Governmental Affairs to be 

the consultant providing the County with lobbying services that support the general governmental 

services of the County, periodic legislative reports, and advising on legislative issues; and 

 

WHEREAS, Gordon Thomas Honeywell Governmental Affairs will bill the County in the monthly 

amount of $2,500, for a total contract amount not to exceed $30,000; NOW, THEREFORE 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners hereby approves the attached 

Consulting Agreement with Gordon Thomas Honeywell Governmental Affairs and authorizes the 

Board to sign the Consulting Agreement; and 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, each monthly payment will be payable to Gordon Thomas 

Honeywell Governmental Affairs and shall be paid by the County within thirty (30) days of receipt 

and verification of invoices for a total contract amount not to exceed $30,000; and 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, this agreement shall start February 1, 2017 and terminate on 

December 31, 2017. 

 

Dated this …….. day of ………………..., 2017. 

 

 

 Chairman of the Board 

  

 

   Chairman Pro-Tem 

  

 

  Member 

Attest: …………………………………. 

                  Clerk of the Board 

 

Constituting the Board of County 

Commissioners of Benton County, Washington 

 

 



BENTON COUNTY 

CONSULTING AGREEMENT 
 

This Agreement is entered into by and between Benton County, a political subdivision, with its 

principal offices at 620 Market Street, Prosser, WA 99350 (hereinafter “County”), and Gordon Thomas 

Honeywell Governmental Affairs, a Washington limited liability company, with its principal offices 

at 1201 Pacific Avenue, Suite 2100, Tacoma, WA 98401 (hereinafter referred to as “Consultant”), 

upon the following terms and conditions: 

 

A. Scope of Work. Consultant will advise and assist the Benton County in accordance with 

Consultant’s Scope of Work, described in Attachment “A” hereto and incorporated herein, and 

Consultant will do and produce such other things as are set forth in the Scope of Work (the 

“Services”). Consultant’s Services will be in compliance with applicable laws, regulations, 

rules, orders, licenses and permits, now or hereinafter in effect, and Consultant shall furnish 

such documents as may be required to effect or evidence such compliance. 

 

B. Compensation; Expenses.  Benton County will pay Consultant for satisfactorily rendered 

Services in accordance with the specific terms set forth in Attachment “A.” 

 

C. Invoices; Payment. Consultant will furnish Benton County invoices at regular intervals, as set 

forth in Attachment “A.” 

 

D. Term. Consultant shall promptly begin the Services hereunder on the date set forth in 

Attachment “A” and shall terminate same on the date set forth in Attachment “A,” unless earlier 

terminated by mutual agreement.  Benton County or consultant may terminate consultant 

services for convenience at any time prior to the termination date set forth in Attachment A, 

provided that either party provides 30 days’ written notice. 

 

E. Ownership of Work Product.  The product of all work performed under this agreement, 

including reports, and other related materials shall be the property of Benton County or its 

nominees, and Benton County or its nominees shall have the sole right to use, sell, license, 

publish or otherwise disseminate or transfer rights in such work product.   

 

F. Independent Contractor. Consultant is an independent contractor and nothing contained 

herein shall be deemed to make Consultant an employee of Benton County, or to empower 

Consultant to bind or obligate Benton County in any way. Consultant is solely responsible for 

paying all of Consultant’s own tax obligations, as well as those due for any 

employee/subcontractor permitted to work for Consultant hereunder. 

 

G. Release of Claims; Indemnity. Consultant hereby releases, and shall defend, indemnify and 

hold harmless Benton County from and against all claims, liabilities, damages and costs arising 

directly or indirectly out of, or related to, Consultant’s actions or omissions, fault, negligence, 

or strict liability of Consultant, and/or that of any permitted employee or subcontract or 

Consultant, pertaining to the Services hereunder. 

 

H. Assignment. Consultant’s rights and obligations hereunder shall not be assigned or transferred 

without Benton County’s prior written consent; subject thereto, this Agreement shall be 

binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties’ heirs, and successors.  

 





2017 Legislative Services Agreement 

Page 3 

ATTACHMENT “A” TO 

BENTON COUNTY CONSULTING AGREEMENT 
 
A. Scope of Work:  Consultant shall provide Benton County with the following governmental 

affairs services: 

 

 Lobby for State legislation that supports the general government services of the County 

 

 Provide the County with periodic legislative reports during the legislative session that 

includes hearing schedules and a summary of bills important to the County. Identify 

legislation that would impact Benton County specifically.  

 

 Provide the County with real-time updated bill tracking that can be accessed via the web. 

 

 Lobby for and against State legislative issues impacting Benton County’s general 

government interests. 

 

 Work with stakeholder groups, including the Washington State Association of Counties, 

in expressing support or opposition for State legislative proposals.  

 

 Consultant will register as the County’s lobbyist with the Public Disclosure Commission, 

prepare all filings required of the County, and advise the County as to its duties in 

complying will all filing requirements. 

 

 

B. Compensation/Expenses: Benton County shall pay Consultant a monthly fee of $2,500 per 

month for Consultant’s services described above.  Consultant may also bill the County for 

communication and travel expenses up to an aggregate maximum of $2,500 for the duration of 

the contract, for a total contract amount not to exceed $30,000. 

 

C. Invoices/Payments: (a) Consultant shall furnish Benton County with invoices for services 

performed on a monthly basis, and (b) Benton County shall pay each of Consultant’s invoices 

within thirty (30) days after County’s receipt and verification of invoices. 

 

D. Term of Agreement: Consultant’s services shall commence on February 1, 2017, and shall 

terminate on December 31, 2017. 



AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: Jan 24, 2017 

Subject: Project Development Services 

Contract with Gordon Thomas 

Honeywell Governmental Affairs 

Prepared by: Shyanne Faulconer
Reviewed by: Cami McKenzie

TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract X 

Pass Resolution         X 

Pass Ordinance 

Pass Motion 

None  

Consent Agenda      X 

Public Hearing 

1st Discussion 

2nd Discussion 

Other  

SUMMARY 

On December 20, 2017, the Board of Commissioners passed a motion to approve funding for project development 

services for the Benton County juvenile facility and possible mental health facility. Gordon Thomas Honeywell 

Governmental Affairs is the selected consultant to provide the County with funding research, recommendations and 

strategies as well as a final report on potential funding sources for these projects. 

This contract will begin February 1, 2017 and will terminate July 31, 2017, and shall include a final report for the 

County to use in pursuing funding for these projects. 

Contract is for a total amount not to exceed $15,000, to be billed to the County in a monthly amount of $2,500. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

Benton County has chosen to hire a consultant to provide the research and recommendations for the development of 

these two projects, with a final report to be received. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Sign and approve the contract and resolution contracting with Gordon Thomas Honeywell for project development 

services. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

$15,000 total contract amount (to be invoiced to the County in a monthly rate of $2,500). 

WEH
Text Box
e. Agreement w/Thomas Honeywell Governmental Affairs for Project Development Services



 

Cc: Auditor; PA-Contract Compliance; Commissioners; Gordon Thomas Honeywell Faulconer 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 

 

IN THE MATTER OF SIGNING A PROJECT DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON AND GORDON 

THOMAS HONEYWELL GOVERNMENTAL AFFAIRS 

 

WHEREAS, on December 20, 2016, the Board of Benton County Commissioners approved funding 

for project development services for Benton County’s juvenile facility and possible mental health 

facility; and 

 

WHEREAS, Benton County has selected Gordon Thomas Honeywell Governmental Affairs to be 

the consultant providing the County with research, recommendations, strategies, and a final report 

outlining potential funding sources of said projects; and 

 

WHEREAS, Gordon Thomas Honeywell Governmental Affairs will bill the County a flat rate of 

$15,000 for all services as proposed, in the monthly amount of $2,500; NOW, THEREFORE 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners hereby approves the attached 

Project Development Services Agreement with Gordon Thomas Honeywell Governmental Affairs 

and authorizes the Board to sign the Project Development Services Agreement; and 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, each monthly payment will be payable to Gordon Thomas 

Honeywell Governmental Affairs and shall be paid by the County within thirty (30) days of receipt 

and verification of invoices for a total contract amount not to exceed $15,000; and 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, this agreement shall start February 1, 2017 and terminate on July 

31, 2017. 

 

Dated this …….. day of ………………..., 2017. 

 

 

 Chairman of the Board 

  

 

   Chairman Pro-Tem 

  

 

  Member 

Attest: …………………………………. 

                  Clerk of the Board 

 

Constituting the Board of County 

Commissioners of Benton County, Washington 

 



 

 

BENTON COUNTY 

PROJECT DEVELOPMENT SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 

This Agreement is entered into by and between Benton County, a political subdivision, with its 

principal offices at 620 Market Street, Prosser, WA 99350 (hereinafter “County”), and Gordon Thomas 

Honeywell Governmental Affairs, a Washington limited liability company, with its principal offices 

at 1201 Pacific Avenue, Suite 2100, Tacoma WA 98401 (hereinafter referred to as “Consultant”), upon 

the following terms and conditions: 

 

A. Scope of Work. Consultant will advise and assist Benton County in accordance with 

Consultant’s Scope of Work, described in Attachment “A” hereto and incorporated herein, and 

Consultant will do and produce such other things as are set forth in the Scope of Work (the 

“Services”). Consultant’s Services will be in compliance with applicable laws, regulations, 

rules, orders, licenses and permits, now or hereinafter in effect, and Consultant shall furnish 

such documents as may be required to effect or evidence such compliance. 

 

B. Compensation; Expenses.  Benton County will pay Consultant for satisfactorily rendered 

Services in accordance with the specific terms set forth in Attachment “A.” 

 

C. Invoices; Payment. Consultant will furnish Benton County invoices at regular intervals, as set 

forth in Attachment “A”, and Benton County shall pay each of Consultant’s invoices as set 

forth in Attachment “A”. 

 

D. Term. Consultant shall promptly begin the Services hereunder on the date set forth in 

Attachment “A” and shall terminate on the date set forth in Attachment “A,” unless earlier 

terminated by mutual agreement.  Benton County or Consultant may terminate Consultant 

Services for convenience at any time prior to the termination date set forth in Attachment “A,” 

provided that either party provides 30 days’ written notice. 

 

E. Ownership of Work Product.  The product of all work performed under this agreement, 

including reports, and other related materials shall be the property of Benton County or its 

nominees, and Benton County or its nominees shall have the sole right to use, sell, license, 

publish or otherwise disseminate or transfer rights in such work product.   

 

F. Independent Contractor. Consultant is an independent contractor and nothing contained 

herein shall be deemed to make Consultant an employee of Benton County, or to empower 

Consultant to bind or obligate Benton County in any way. Consultant is solely responsible for 

paying all of Consultant’s own tax obligations, as well as those due for any 

employee/subcontractor permitted to work for Consultant hereunder. 

 

G. Release of Claims; Indemnity. Consultant hereby releases, and shall defend, indemnify and 

hold harmless Benton County from and against all claims, liabilities, damages and costs arising 

directly or indirectly out of, or related to, Consultant’s actions or omissions, fault, negligence, 

or strict liability of Consultant, and/or that of any permitted employee or subcontract or 

Consultant, pertaining to the Services hereunder. 

 

H. Assignment. Consultant’s rights and obligations hereunder shall not be assigned or transferred 

without Benton County’s prior written consent; subject thereto, this Agreement shall be 

binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties’ heirs, and successors.   

 





 

2017 Project Development Services Agreement 

Page 3 

ATTACHMENT “A” TO 

BENTON COUNTY PROJECT DEVELOPMENT SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 
A. Scope of Work:  Consultant shall provide Benton County with the following project 

development services: 

 

 For both the County’s juvenile detention facility and a possible mental health facility in 

lieu of incarceration (may be an additional wing to the Justice Center or a standalone 

building), the Consultant shall complete the following activities: 

 
o Research potential public and private sources of grants and financing 

 

o Recommend the most relevant funding sources to pursue 

 

o Establish a funding strategy for securing funding, including a timeline and 

responsibilities 

 

 Consultant will provide Benton County with a report outlining the outcome of the above 

activities. 

 

B. Compensation/Expenses: Benton County shall pay Consultant a total flat fee not to exceed 

$15,000 for the services listed above.  Consultant may also bill Benton County for travel and 

communication expenses up to an aggregate maximum of $2,000 for the duration of the 

contract.  

 

C. Invoices/Payments: (a) Consultant shall furnish Benton County with invoices for services 

performed in the amount of $2,500 per month for six months, and (b) Benton County shall pay 

each of Consultant’s invoices within thirty (30) days after County’s receipt and verification of 

invoices. 

 

D. Term of Agreement: Consultant’s services shall commence on February 1, 2017 and shall 

terminate on July 31, 2017. 

 



Dated this day of , 

Attest:

cc: Dept., Auditor, File, Prepared by: 

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN VIT

IMPACT FUND NUMBER 0153-101, DEPARTMENT NUMBER 000

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that funds

shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto; and

Clerk of the Board

Chairman of the Board

Member

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.

WEH
Text Box
f. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0153-101, Dept. 000



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:

TRANSFER FROM:  Dept 000 TRANSFER TO:  Dept 000

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT

(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)

594.110 4189 Contingency $130,000 544.700 5167 City of Kennewick $130,000

TOTAL $130,000 TOTAL $130,000

Explanation:

Prepared by: P. Schut Date:  17-Jan-2017

Approved  Denied  Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

Transfer is for the 2015-2016 Budget. On December 20th, the Commissioners approved an Inter-Local Agreement (2016-1060) between Benton County 

and the City of Kennewick to pay for part of the New Bob Olsen Parkway. On January 10th, the Commissioners directed staff to use VIT Impact Funds to 

pay for the Inter-Local Agreement.

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

No Department

VIT IMPACT

000

0153-101



WEH
Text Box
g. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 111





WEH
Text Box
h. Award to Brutzmans Inc for the purchase of Office Furniture for the Tenant Improvement Project @ the Justice Center























 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: 01/24/2017     

Subject: OPD/PA Tenant 

Improvements 

Prepared by:       Larry Hueter 

Reviewed by:   

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract __X___ 

Pass Resolution  _____  

Pass Ordinance  _____  

Pass Motion  _____  

Other   None 

 

Consent Agenda            

__X___  

Public Hearing            _____  

1st Discussion            _____ 

2nd Discussion            _____ 

Other             _____  
  

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
The Board of Benton County Commissioners approved an architectural and 
engineering contract with Meier Enterprises, Inc. (Resolution 2015 607) for 
the design and engineering of the OPD/PA Tenant Improvements at the Benton 
County Justice Center. The Public Service Administrator proceeded with 
advertising bids from qualified General Contractors and bids were received on 
December 7, 2016 from six (6) bidders. Booth & Sons Construction, Inc. of 
Richland WA is the low responsive bidder (Resolution 2016 1048) for this 
project.   
 
 
SUMMARY 
Booth & Sons Construction, Inc. has supplied Benton County with a signed 
contract and all the related documents for the creation of a Construction 
Contract. Included in this packet is the required liability insurance naming 
Benton County an additional insured. The packet also includes the required 
Payment and Performance Bonds. 
Booth & Sons Construction, Inc. base bid is One million three hundred forty 
thousand dollars and no cents plus Washington Sale Tax. Making the contract 
amount One million three hundred forty thousand dollars and no cents 
($1,340,000.00) The Public Services Administrator and Project Manager 
recommend that a Contingency Budget of $134,000.00 for anticipated Change 
Orders be approved. 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
As an agenda item on the Consent Agenda, the Commissioners sign the Contract 
Agreement between Benton County and Booth & Sons Construction, Inc. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT 

 
$1,340,000.00 plus $134,000.00 and W.S.S.T. to be appropriated from the 
$1,800,000.00 budget included in Capital Programs. 
 
 

 
 
 
 

WEH
Text Box
i. Contract w/Booth & Sons Construction, Inc for Tenant Improvement Project @ the Justice Center























Dated this day of , 

Attest:

cc: Dept., Auditor C. McKenzie

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF TRANSFER OF FUNDS FROM CURRENT EXPENSE FUND 

0000101, FACILITIES DEPT. 110

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that 

funds shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto.

Clerk of the Board

Chairman of the Board

Member

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.

WEH
Text Box
j. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 110



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:

TRANSFER FROM:  TRANSFER TO: 

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT

(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)

518-301 1905 Temp. Help $4,000 518-301 4701 Utilities $16,240

518-301 1925 OT $304

518-301 1931 Pager Pay $2,240

518-301 2105 Uniforms $2,888

518-301 1269 Electronics Technician $186

518-301 1520 Facilities Manager $884

518-301 4191 Central Service - Admin Fee $2,750

518-301 4593 Auto Rental $921

518-301 4894 ER&R Repair $2,067

TOTAL $16,240 TOTAL $16,240

Explanation:

Prepared by: Cami McKenzie Date:  24-Jan-2016

Approved q Denied q Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

2015-2016 Budget.  

Facilities

Current Expense

110

0000-101



WEH
Text Box
k. Notice to Lowest Responsible Bidder for Hazardous Materials Abatement Project for Old Engineering Building





WEH
Text Box
l. Contract w/SimplexGrinnell for Fire Alarm Inspection & Testing









































WEH
Text Box
m. Contract w/Yoder Inc dba Coffeys Refrigeration for Kitchen Equipment Repair









































WEH
Text Box
n. Contract w/Sierra Electric Inc for Electrical Repair









































WEH
Text Box
o. Contract w/Western States CAT for Engine & Generator Maintenance & Repair









































WEH
Text Box
p. Contract w/NCIC Inmate Communications for Facility Inmate Telephone Services

















































Dated this day of , 

Attest:

Prepared by: J. Bowe

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.

Clerk of the Board

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN

OPERATIONS FUND NUMBER 0115101, DEPARTMENT NUMBER 171

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that funds

shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto .

Chairman of the Board

Member

WEH
Text Box
q. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0115-101, Dept. 171



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:

TRANSFER FROM:  Dept TRANSFER TO:  Dept 

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT

(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)

527.100 1935 Holiday $29,000 527.100 1925 Overtime $29,000

527.100 5119 EDC-800 MGZ User Fees $2,500 527.100 5121 Background Checks - WSP $2,500

527.100 4103 Professional Services $9,000 527.100 4894 ER&R Repair & Maintenance $9,000

TOTAL $40,500 TOTAL $40,500

Explanation:  

Prepared by: Jennifer Bowe Date:  12-Jan-2017

Approved q Denied q Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

2015-2016 Budget: Line item transfer necessary to cover deficits in various line items

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

Juvenile Center 171

Operations 0115101



Dated this day of , 

Attest:

Prepared by: J. Bowe

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.

Clerk of the Board

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN

OPERATIONS TO FACILITIES FUND NUMBER 0115101, DEPARTMENT

NUMBER 171 TO 172

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that funds

shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto .

Chairman of the Board

Member

WEH
Text Box
r. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0115-101, Dept. 171 to 172



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:

TRANSFER FROM:  Dept TRANSFER TO:  Dept 

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT

(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)

527.100 4101 Legal Services $109,772 527.800 4103 Professional Services $109,772

TOTAL $109,772 TOTAL $109,772

Explanation:  

Prepared by: Jennifer Bowe Date:  12-Jan-2017

Approved q Denied q Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

2015-2016 Budget: Line item transfer necessary to cover deficit in the Professional Services line item. Deficit was due to an architectural study of the

BFJJC Administration Building as approved by the Benton County and Franklin County Board of Commissioners in January 2015. This was not a

budgeted expense however no supplement was needed.

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

Juvenile Center 171 to 172

Operations to Facilities 0115101



Dated this day of , 

Attest:

Prepared by: J. Bowe

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.

Clerk of the Board

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN

CURRENT EXPENSE FUND NUMBER 0000101, DEPARTMENT NUMBER 138

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that funds

shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto .

Chairman of the Board

Member

WEH
Text Box
s. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 138



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:

TRANSFER FROM:  Dept TRANSFER TO:  Dept 

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT

(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)

512.235 4181 Administrative Services $1,300 521.235 4180 Legal Services $1,300

TOTAL $1,300 TOTAL $1,300

Explanation:  

Prepared by: Jennifer Bowe Date:  12-Jan-2017

Approved q Denied q Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

2015-2016 Budget: Line item transfer needed to account for PA services in 2016. Budget allocation was originally budgeted under line item 4181

Administrative Services.

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

Juvenile Drug Court 138

Current Expense 0000101



WEH
Text Box
t. Agreement w/M Matkowski for Private Investigator Services











































cc:  Parks; Auditor   C. McKenzie 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dated this . . . . . . . day of . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , 20 . . . .  

       
Chairman of the Board  

 
       

Chairman Pro Tem  
 

         
Member 

 
Constituting the Board of County 

Attest: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .      Commissioners of Benton County, 
 Clerk of the Board      Washington 
 
 

IN THE MATTER OF AUTHORIZING PAYMENT TO TOTAL ENERGY 
MANAGEMENT, INC. FOR SERVICES PERFORMED ON THE HVAC IN THE 
RESIDENCE BUILDING AT HORN RAPIDS PARK 
 
WHEREAS, there was a major malfunction with the HVAC at the residence at Horn 
Rapids Park on December 21, 2016, exposing the risk of having the house freeze up and 
the pipes along with it; and 
 
WHEREAS, Total Energy Management, Inc. came on site and diagnosed the problem as 
the main fan mechanism and the Sustainable Development Manager deemed this an 
emergency and authorized the repairs in the amount of $593.77 to replace the failing 
blower motor with a universal motor and adapter;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the Board of Benton County 
Commissioners hereby authorizes payment to Total Energy Management, Inc. in the 
amount of $593.77 including WSST for services performed on the HVAC at the 
residence at Horn Rapids Park.   
 

WEH
Text Box
u. Payment Authorization to Total Energy Management for HVAC Services @ Horn Rapids Park





Dated this day of , 

Attest:

cc: Dept., Auditor C. McKenzie

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF TRANSFER OF FUNDS FROM CURRENT EXPENSE FUND 

0000101, PARKS DEPT. 126 TO CURRENT EXPENSE FUND 0000101, 

FACILITIES DEPT. 110

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that 

funds shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto.

Clerk of the Board

Chairman of the Board

Member

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.

WEH
Text Box
v. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 126 to Dept. 110



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:

TRANSFER FROM:  Dept. 126 TRANSFER TO: Dept. 110

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT

(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)

576-800 2105 Uniforms $582 518-301 4701 Utilities $14,865

576-800 3117 Chemicals $4,500

576-800 3201 Fuel $4,000

576-800 4593 Auto Rental $2,583

576-800 4804 Repair/Maint. Other $2,000

576-800 4894 ER&R Repair $1,200

TOTAL $14,865 TOTAL $14,865

Explanation:

Prepared by: Cami McKenzie Date:  24-Jan-2017

Approved q Denied q Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

2015-2016 Budget.  To cover shortages in Facilities. 

Parks

Current Expense

126

0000-101



A G E N D A ITEM T Y P E O F ACTION N E E D E D 
Meeting Date: January 24, Execute Contract Consent Agenda X Meeting Date: 

2017 Pass Resolution X Public Hearing 
Subject: Memorandum of Pass Ordinance 1st Discussion Subject: 

Agreement Pass Motion 2nd Discussion 
Prepared by: C. Fraley Other X Other 
Reviewed by: S . Hallstrom 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: The Benton County negotiation team has successfully negotiated a 
resolution to a concern of the Deputy Sheriff's Guild, wherein the CBA was silent as to the ability of a 
voluntarily retiring, qualifying, career Deputy Sheriff to receive a lumpsum payment to his VEBA Trust 
Account, equivalent to up to fifty percent (50%) of his unused sick leave pursuant to the CBA 

SUMMARY : The Memorandum of Agreement permits the above referenced, voluntarily retiring, 
career Deputy Sheriff to receive a lump sum payment to his VEBA Trust Account equivalent to up to 
fifty percent (50%) of his unused sick leave, in lieu of a lump sum, direct payment pursuant to the 
CBA, saving Benton County from responsibility for payment of payroll taxes on said amount. 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve a resolution authorizing the Chair of the Board to sign the 
Memorandum of Agreement. 

FISCAL IMPACT: Revenue neutral and potentially saves Benton County funds. The Memorandum of 
Agreement permits a career Deputy Sheriff voluntarily retiring to receive a lump sum payment to his 
VEBA Trust Account equivalent to up to fifty percent (50%) of his unused sick leave pursuant to the 
CBA, saving Benton County from responsibility for payment of payroll taxes on this amount pursuant 
to applicable authority. 

MOTION: I move that we approve the resolution authorizing the Chair of the Board to sign the 
Memorandum of Agreement. 

WEH
Text Box
w. Memorandum of Agreement w/Benton County Deputy Sheriff’s Guild



RESOLUTION 

B E F O R E THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

IN THE MATTER OF A MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN BENTON COUNTY AND THE 
BENTON COUNTY DEPUTY SHERIFF 'S GUILD. 

WHEREAS, an agreement between the parties has been reached by negotiators for Benton County and 
the Benton County Deputy Sheriff's Guild, regarding the voluntary retirement of a career Deputy Sheriff and 
payment for qualifying, unused sick leave, pursuant to the collective bargaining agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the Memorandum of Agreement permits the above referenced, voluntarily retiring, Deputy 
Sheriff to receive a lump sum payment to his VEBA Trust Account equivalent to up to fifty percent (50%) of 
qualifying, unused sick leave, in lieu of a lump sum, direct payment, pursuant to the collective bargaining 
agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the Benton County Board of Commissioners have discussed and approved the significant 

terms of the Memorandum of Agreement regarding the retiring Deputy Sheriff's unused sick leave upon 
voluntary retirement. 

NOW, T H E R E F O R E , B E IT R E S O L V E D that the Benton County Board of Commissioners hereby approve 
the Memorandum of Agreement and are authorized to sign the same. 

DATED this day of January, 2017. 

Chair of the Board 

Member 

Member 

Constituting the Board of Commissioners 
of Benton County, Washington 

Attest. 
Clerk of the Board 

Orig: Civil 
cc: David Sparks; Stephen Hallstrom 

S. Hallstrom 
1 



MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT 

THIS MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT (MOA) is entered into by and between BENTON 
COUNTY (County), by and through the SHERIFF'S OFFICE (SO) and, BENTON COUNTY 
DEPUTY SHERIFF'S GUILD (BCDSG), representing commissioned deputies of the SO. 

WHEREAS, SO Employee Lieutenant Brian L. White (Employee) was hired by the SO as a 
duly commissioned deputy on March 20, 1989; and 

WHEREAS, Employee is set to voluntarily retire from the SO on January 31, 2017; and 

WHEREAS, the County and the SO have entered into a controlling collective bargaining 
agreement (CBA) with the BCDSG, effective January 1, 2013, through December 31, 2017, inclusive; 
and 

WHEREAS, CBA, Article 17.5 (A.) provides employees hired prior to January 1, 1994, will be 
paid for fifty percent (50%) of unused sick leave at voluntary retirement, without the option of a lump 
sum payment to employees' VEBA Trust Account; and 

WHEREAS, CBA, Article 17.5 (B.) provides employees hired on or after January 1, 1994, with 
a minimum of five (5) years' experience, at voluntary retirement will receive a lump sum payment to 
their VEBA Trust Account equivalent to twenty-five percent (25%) of unused sick leave, not to exceed 
Five Thousand and No/100 Dollars ($5,000.00); and 

WHEREAS, the controlling CBA is silent as to unit members similarly situated to Employee 
receiving a lump sum payment to their VEBA Trust Account equivalent to fifty percent (50%) of their 
unused sick leave; and 

WHEREAS, Employee contacted HR requesting consideration by the County permitting him to 
receive a lump sum payment to his VEBA Trust Account equivalent to fifty percent (50%) of his unused 
sick leave, in lieu of being paid for fifty percent (50%) of unused sick leave, similar to some other 
County employees, including SO Clerical unit members, saving the County paying payroll taxes on this 
amount; and 

WHEREAS, Employee's request is revenue neutral, and potentially saves the County payment 
of additional payroll taxes compensating Employee for his unused sick leave per the CBA; and 

WHEREAS, the SO supports Employee's ability to receive a lump sum payment to his VEBA 
Trust Account equivalent to fifty percent (50%) of his unused sick leave, in lieu of being paid for fifty 
percent (50%) of unused sick leave; and 

WHEREAS, the parties expressly agree this MOU shall not set precedence in any manner and on 
any level, nor establish or otherwise be utilized to establish, and/or be utilized as evidence of, "current 
practice" or "past practice", in any manner, including without limitation, labor negotiations, grievances 
and/or arbitrations, involving the current 2013 - 2017 CBA, or any successor CBA, between the parties. 

WHITE SICK LEAVE RETIREMENT REIMBURSEMENT MOA - 1 



NOW, T H E R E F O R E , based on the above recitals, the parties have mutually agreed to the 
following: 

1. Employee will receive a lump sum payment to his VEBA Trust Account equivalent to fifty 
percent (50%) of his unused qualifying sick leave, in lieu of being paid for fifty percent (50%) of 
unused sick leave pursuant to the controlling CBA, Article 17.5(A). 

2. No language in the 2013-2017 CBA is amended, or intended to be changed, altered or otherwise 
modified. 

3. Either party or both parties hereto may elect to propose language to specifically address the 
application and impact of demotions, including voluntary demotions and/or step increase 
anniversary dates, during negotiations for the 2018 CBA, commencing in 2017, and/or successor 
CBAs in subsequent years. 

4. The parties expressly agree this MOA shall not set precedence in any manner and on any level, 
nor establish or otherwise be utilized to establish, and/or be utilized as evidence of, "current 
practice" or "past practice", in any manner, including without limitation, labor negotiations, 
grievances and/or arbitrations, involving the current 2013 - 2017 CBA, or any successor CBA, 
involving the parties. 

[THIS S P A C E I N T E N T I O N A L L Y L E F T B L A N K ] 

WHITE SICK LEAVE RETIREMENT REIMBURSEMENT MOA - 2 



IN W I T N E S S W H E R E O F , the parties hereto agree to the terms and conditions of this Amendment 
and have caused it to be signed by their duly constituted and legal representatives as follows: 

BENTON COUNTY DEPUTY SHERIFF'S 
GUILD 

Brian L . Tungesvik, President 

Date: H l - H  

BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

Chair 

Member 

Member 

Constituting the Board of 
Benton County Commissioners 

Attest: 

Clerk of the Board 

Date: 

Deputy Prosecuting Attorney Emmal Skalbania & Vinnedge PLLC 

Attorneys for BCDSG 

WHITE SICK LEAVE RETIREMENT REIMBURSEMENT MOA - 3 

BENTON COUNTY SHERIFF'S 
OFFICE 

i^J^ ^ /L~—— 

Steven N . Keane, Sheriff 

Date: f/jTl/cZ  



Dated this day of , 

Attest:

Prepared by: J. Bowe

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.

Clerk of the Board

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN

PUBLIC SAFETLY TAX (3/10 OF 1%) FUND NUMBER 0148101, DEPARTMENT

NUMBER 138

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that funds

shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto .

Chairman of the Board

Member

WEH
Text Box
x. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0148-101, Dept. 138



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:

TRANSFER FROM:  Dept TRANSFER TO:  Dept 

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT

(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)

512.232 4181 Administrative Services $5,500 512.232 4180 Legal Services $5,500

TOTAL $5,500 TOTAL $5,500

Explanation:  

Prepared by: Jennifer Bowe Date:  12-Jan-2017

Approved q Denied q Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

2015-2016 Budget: Line item transfer needed to account for PA services in 2016. Budget allocation was originally budgeted under line item 4181

Administrative Services.

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

Juvenile Drug Court 138

Public Safetly Tax (3/10 of 1%) 0148101



 

 
 AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date:      Jan. 24, 2017  

Subject:              Amend 2 for 

                            2015-2017 CPG 

Prepared by:               gnd  

Reviewed by:               MSR  
 

 
 TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 
Execute Agreement               

Pass Resolution                   X  

Pass Ordinance             

Pass Motion                  

Other                          ___________ 

 
 

Consent Agenda               X  

Public Hearing             

1st Discussion                      

2nd Discussion              

Other                             

 

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

 

Benton County entered into an agreement with the Washington State Department of Ecology (“Ecology”) for the 2015-2017 

Coordinated Prevention Grant (CPG) (Res. 2015-919). The CPG reimburses up to 75 percent of the expenditures for the Benton 

County solid waste program. The 2015-2017 CPG would contribute up to $316,793.00 to the solid waste program. 

 

Part of the solid waste program during the timeframe of the 2015-2017 CPG is the retrofit of an existing county road shop to a 

moderate risk waste facility (MRWF). As part of this project, the solid waste program procured a county road shop from the 

ER&R fund. This expenditure was not covered as part of the CPG program, and therefore the expense could not be reimbursed. 

In order to allow for reimbursement of this expense, an amendment to the agreement has been prepared. 

 

 

SUMMARY 

 

The Benton County solid waste program is proposing an amendment to a grant agreement with the Washington State 

Department of Ecology in order to allow for reimbursement of the cost of procuring a site for its retrofitted moderate risk waste 

facility. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 
 

The County Engineer recommends that the Board approve of the proposed amendment and authorize the Chairman to sign on 

the Board’s behalf. 

 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 

 

Signing the proposed amendment will permit the County to be reimbursed for up to $360,000.00 for the procurement of the 

site for the moderate risk waste facility. As this exceeds the maximum amount of the grant, it will ensure that Benton County 

will receive the maximum benefit from this grant. 

 

 

MOTION 

 

Approve as part of the consent agenda. 

WEH
Text Box
y. Amendment No. 2 for Solid Waste Coordinated Prevention Grant w/Dept of Ecology



 

 

 

RESOLUTION 
 
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 

 

 

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS, RE:  AMENDMENT NO. 2 FOR BENTON COUNTY 

SOLID WASTE COORDINATED PREVENTION GRANT WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF 

ECOLOGY 

 

WHEREAS, the Benton County solid waste program entered into an agreement for a coordinated 

prevention grant (CPG) with the Washington State Department of Ecology (“Ecology”) for the 

reimbursement of solid waste expenditures (Res. 2015-919); and 

 

WHEREAS, the solid waste program procured a site for its retrofitted moderate risk waste facility from 

the Benton County equipment rental and revolving (ER&R) fund, which was not reimbursable under the 

terms of the CPG agreement; and 

 

WHEREAS, Ecology and the Benton County solid waste program have drafted an amendment to the CPG 

agreement that would permit reimbursement for this cost; and 

 

WHEREAS, the possible reimbursement for the site, $360,000.00, exceeds the maximum reimbursable 

amount for the agreement, $316,793.00, thereby ensuring that Benton County will receive the maximum 

amount under the agreement; and 

 

WHEREAS, the County Engineer recommends that the Board of County Commissioners approve of the 

attached amendment and authorize the Chairman to sign on their behalf; NOW, THEREFORE, 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of County Commissioners hereby approves of an amendment to the 

2015-2017 CPG agreement adopted by Res. 2015-919, permitting the reimbursement of funds expended on 

the procurement of a site for the moderate risk waste facility planned by the solid waste program; and 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board of County Commissioners hereby authorizes the 

Chairman to sign the same on the Board’s behalf. 

 

Dated this    24th    day of     January    , 2017 

       

                 

Chairman of the Board. 

      

 

      

                      Chairman Pro-Tem. 

      

 

                                    

                                      Member.   

 Attest:             Constituting the Board of County 

             Clerk of the Board                         Commissioners of Benton County, 

                                            Washington. 

      
Orig.:  Road Dept                     G. DeJongh 

 











WEH
Text Box
z. Construction Plans for Sagebrush Road Safety Project

























































































































WEH
Text Box
aa. Construction Plans for Shuler Road Culvert Replacement



















































































































WEH
Text Box
bb. Acceptance of Work Performed by Solid Structures LLC for Storage Sheds



WEH
Text Box
cc. Transfer of Funds from Flood Control Fund (0103101) to the Road Fund (0101101)





WEH
Text Box
dd. Purchase of Tires & Services from Pasco Tire Factory





























































































































WEH
Text Box
ee. Purchase of Public Safety Communications Equipment from Advanced Paging & Communications





























































































































WEH
Text Box
ff. Authorization to Proceed to Bid for Purchase of Herbicides















WEH
Text Box
gg. 2016 Federal Equitable Sharing Agreement & Certification Report





WEH
Text Box
hh. Salary Request Statement



 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: January 24, 2017    
Subject: Purchase Authorization 

for Portable Radios 
Prepared by: L. Small       
Reviewed by: Ryan Lukson  

   

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract __X_ _  
Pass Resolution  __X__  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
Consent Agenda           __X   _ 
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION/ SUMMARY 
 
In 2008 the Benton County Sheriff’s Office (BCSO) upgraded their mobile and portable radios from the antiquated 
800 MHz analog system to P-25 Digital compliant radios.  This change was precipitated by SECOMM reaching the 
life expectancy of the analog system and by no longer being able to obtain parts for the analog system. 
 
The P-25 Digital radio equipment has now been in service for 8 years and the BCSO is experiencing maintenance 
issues and failures with several of the portable radios. The manufacturer has discontinued the current model of 
portable radios and has limited parts available. The mobile radios are not experiencing the same failure rates as 
they are securely mounted in vehicles and do not suffer the wear and tear that the portables must endure. 
  
The Benton County Sheriff’s Office submitted a capital project request for the 2017/2018 budget process to replace 
eighty (80) patrol portable radios with new APX6000 radios and equipment through the Washington State 
Department of Enterprise Services NASPO Contract No. 06913 in the amount of $313,356.00, which includes 
trading in 80 portable radios at a value of $300 per each portable radio.  Said request was approved in the 2017/2018 
budget process.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The BCSO received and reviewed a quote from Motorola Solutions in the amount of $313,198.13 based on the 
NASPO Contract No. 06913, which includes APX6000 portable radios, software, batteries, belt clips, chargers, lapel 
microphones, and warranty and recommends moving forward with said purchase. Said amount also includes the 
trade-in of 80 portable radios at a value of $300 each.  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
Ryan Lukson  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
An amount not to exceed $313,356.00 which includes a trade-in of 80 used radios at a value of $300 per radio.  
Said expenditure shall be paid from Current Expense 0000101, Dept. 121, Capital Outlay.  
  
 
MOTION 
 
Consent Agenda  

WEH
Text Box
ii. Purchase of Portable Communication Equipment from Motorola Solutions



Original: File – Sheriffs Office 
cc: Auditor; Motorola Solutions, Purchase FIle 
  L. Small 
 

RESOLUTION 

  
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

 

IN THE MATTER OF AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF PORTABLE COMMUNICATION 
EQUIPMENT FROM MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS UTILIZING THE WASHINGTON STATE 
DEPARTMENT OF ENTERPRISE SERVICE NASPO (FORMALLY WSAC) CONTRACT NO. 
06913 FOR THE BENTON COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE  
 
WHEREAS, in 2008 the Benton County Sheriff’s Office (BCSO) upgraded their mobile and portable 
radios from the antiquated 800 MHz analog system to P-25 Digital compliant radios.  This change 
was precipitated by SECOMM reaching the life expectancy of the analog system and by no longer 
being able to obtain parts for the analog system; and  
 
WHEREAS, the P-25 Digital radio equipment has now been in service for 8 years and the BCSO is 
experiencing maintenance issues and failures with several of the portable radios. The manufacturer 
has discontinued the current model of portable radios and has limited parts available; and  
   
WHEREAS, the BCSO submitted a capital project request for the 2017/2018 budget process to 
replace eighty (80) patrol portable radios with new APX6000 radios and equipment through the 
Washington State Department of Enterprise Services NASPO Contract No. 06913 in the amount of 
$313,356.00, which includes trading in 80 portable radios at a value of $300 per each portable radio; 
and   
 
WHEREAS, the BCSO received and reviewed a quote from Motorola Solutions in the amount of 
$313,198.13 based on the NASPO Contract No. 06913, which includes APX6000 portable radios, 
software, batteries, belt clips, chargers, lapel microphones, and warranty and recommends moving 
forward with said purchase; NOW, THEREFORE 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington, 
hereby concurs with the recommendation and authorizes the purchase of new portable 
communication equipment for the Benton County Sheriff’s Office from Motorola Solutions utilizing 
the Washington State Department of Enterprise Services NASPO Contract No. 06913 in the amount 
of $313,198.13, with amount not to exceed $313,356.00 to cover any unexpected cost; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the amount not to exceed was approved in the 2017/2018 budget 
process; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Board hereby authorizes the Chairman to sign the attached 
Purchase Agreement between Benton County and Motorola Solutions in the amount of $313,198.13.   
 
 
Dated this  ________ day of ________________, 2017.                                

  __________________________________                
 Chairman of the Board 

 
 

                                         __________________________________                
             Member 

Attest............................................................ 
                       Clerk of the Board 

 __________________________________  
 Member 
  

Constituting the Board of Commissioners 
of Benton County, Washington 



































































 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: January 24, 2017      
Subject: US Marshal 

Intergovernmental 
Agreement 
Modification 

Prepared by: L. Small       
Reviewed by: Ryan Lukson  

                         

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract __X   _ 
Pass Resolution  __X__  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
Consent Agenda           _X   _ 
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION/ SUMMARY 
 
Per Resolution 2014-756 dated October 14, 2014, the Board of Benton County Commissioners entered 
into an Intergovernmental Agreement No. 85-03-0031 with United States Marshal Service (USMS) for the 
housing of federal detainees at the Benton County Jail Facility. 
 
The United States Marshal Service provided the Sheriff’s Office with the attached written Modification for 
the purpose of adding Restrictive Housing Instructions to the scope of work within the current Agreement.  
 
State, local, tribal and territorial service providers that have Intergovernmental Agreements shall report 
basic information about the placement of federal detainees in restrictive housing, similar to the reporting 
requirements that the USMS imposes upon the occurrence of significant incidents, which is all further 
outlined in the attached Restrictive Housing Modification.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve the attached Resolution and Intergovernmental Agreement Modification between Benton County 
and United States Marshals Service for the purpose of adding Restrictive Housing Instructions to the scope 
of work within the current Agreement. 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM  
 
Ryan Lukson  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
No fiscal impact.  
 
 
MOTION 
 
Consent Agenda  
 

WEH
Text Box
jj. Intergovernmental Agreement Modification w/US Marshals Service for Housing of Federal Detainees



Original: Sheriff’s Office 
CC: Auditor; S. Araiza; USMS

L. Small 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

IN THE MATTER OF AUTHORIZING THE CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD TO SIGN 
THE INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT MODIFICATION BETWEEN UNITED 
STATES MARSHALS SERVICE AND BENTON COUNTY FOR THE HOUSING OF 
FEDERAL DETAINEES AT THE BENTON COUNTY JAIL FACILITY 
 
WHEREAS, per Resolution 2014-756 dated October 14, 2014, the Board of Benton County 
Commissioners entered into an Intergovernmental Agreement No. 85-03-0031 with United States 
Marshal Service for the housing of federal detainees at the Benton County Jail Facility; and 
 
WHEREAS, per Resolution 2015-255 dated March 31, 2015, the Board of County Commissioners 
approved Agreement No. 85-03-0031 Modification between Benton County and United States 
Marshal Service for the purpose of adding Prison Rape Elimination Act (PREA) and the 
Affordable Care Act (ACA) to the current Agreement; and 
 
WHEREAS, per Resolution 2016-629 dated August 16, 2016, the Board of County Commissioners 
approved the Agreement No. 85-03-0031 Modification between Benton County and United States 
Marshal Service for the purpose of adding jail to jail Guard/Transportation services to and from 
Spokane County and Yakima County, at its sole discretion, to the current Agreement, and  
 
WHEREAS, the United States Marshal Service provided the Sheriff’s Office with the attached 
written Modification for the purpose of adding Restrictive Housing Instructions to the scope of 
work within the current Agreement; and 
 
WHEREAS, state, local, tribal and territorial service providers that have Intergovernmental 
Agreements shall report basic information about the placement of federal detainees in restrictive 
housing, similar to the reporting requirements that the USMS imposes upon the occurrence of 
significant incidents, which is all further outlined in the attached Restrictive Housing 
Modification; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Jail Commander has reviewed the proposed modification and recommends 
moving forward with the attached Agreement Modification for the purpose adding Restrictive 
Housing Instructions to the current Intergovernmental Agreement No. 85-03-0031; NOW, 
THEREFORE 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington 
hereby approves the attached Agreement No. 85-03-0031 Modification between Benton County 
and United States Marshals Service for the purpose of adding Restrictive Housing Instructions to 
the current Intergovernmental Agreement, as further outlined in the attached Modification; and 
       



Original: Sheriff’s Office 
CC: Auditor; S. Araiza; USMS

L. Small 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Board hereby authorizes the Chairman to sign the attached 
Agreement No. 85-03-0031 Restrictive Housing Modification.   

 

 
 

Dated this day of , 2017 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Chairman of the Board 

Member 

Member 
 

Attest: 
 

 

Clerk of the Board 











Dated this day of , 

Attest:

cc: Dept., Auditor, File, Prepared by: 

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN

CURRENT EXPENSE FUND NUMBER 0000-101, DEPARTMENT NUMBER 123

AND FROM CURRENT EXPENSE FUND NUMBER 0000-101, DEPARTMENT

NUMBER 115

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that funds

shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto; and

Clerk of the Board

Chairman of the Board

Member

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.

WEH
Text Box
kk. Line Item Transfer, Fund 0000-101, Depts. 123 & 115



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:

TRANSFER FROM:  Dept 115 & 123 TRANSFER TO:  Dept 123

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT

(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)

512.215 1480 PT Court Commissioner $40,739

511.600 4931 Fenced Item Contingency $21,106 512.215 2102 Social Security $3,117

512.215 2103 Medical Insurance $1,474

512.210 9908 Accumulated Leave $31,087 512.215 2104 Retirement $5,092

512.215 4901 Dues $696

512.215 9101 IT Admin Assessment $582

512.215 9601 Insurance Management $493

TOTAL $52,193 TOTAL $52,193

Explanation:

Prepared by: P. Schut Date:  17-Jan-2017

Approved  Denied  Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

Transfer is for the 2017-2018 Budget. During the Budget Process the Board of Benton County Commissioners' approved PT Court Commissioner within 

the Public Safety Tax. Franklin County's portion of the PT Court Commissioner, which will be billed on actuals + administration fee, now needs to be 

included within the Current Expense Budget. These funds will be reimbursed in full by Franklin County.

Dept. 115 - Non-Departmental

Dept. 123 - Superior Court

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

Superior Court

Current Expense

123

0000-101



Dated this day of , 

Attest:

cc: Dept., Auditor C. McKenzie

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN 

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT FUND NUMBER 0135101, DEPARTMENT 

NUMBER 000.

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that 

funds shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto.

Clerk of the Board

Chairman of the Board

Member

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.

WEH
Text Box
ll. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0135-101, Dept. 000



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:

TRANSFER FROM:  TRANSFER TO: 

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT

(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)

558-610 4301 Travel $7 558-610 2103 Medical Insurance $7

TOTAL $7 TOTAL $7

Explanation:

Prepared by: Cami McKenzie Date:  24-Jan-2017

Approved q Denied q Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

2015-2016 Budget - move funds to take care of shortage in Medical Insurance Line Item

Sustainable Dev.

Sustainable Development

000

0135101



 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: Jan 24, 2017 

Subject: Letter of Support - EVITA 

Prepared by: SRF 

Reviewed by: AJF 

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract              

Pass Resolution             

Pass Ordinance              

Pass Motion   

Sign Letter  X 

 
 

 

Consent Agenda  X 

Public Hearing             

1st Discussion             

2nd Discussion             

Other              

 

SUMMARY 

Benton County was contacted by Energy Northwest to support the Electric Vehicle Infrastructure Transportation 

Alliance (EVITA) project to advocate for sustainable electric vehicle charging stations throughout the Tri-Cities and 

Prosser. Many local PUDs, REAs, and cities have also supported this project. 

 

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

EVITA is working to advocate for sustainable transportation infrastructure and promote the partnership of public and 

private entities to develop and implement electric vehicle charging stations locally. The Mid-Columbia Energy 

Initiative (MCEI) is another group behind this project, supporting economic development that promotes sustainability 

and recognizing that that our region is integral to helping solve energy issues throughout the nation. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

Sign the attached letter and mail to the appropriate designee. 

 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 

None. 

 

 

MOTION 

None. 

WEH
Text Box
mm. Letter of Support to EVITA for Electric Vehicle Charging Stations



 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190; Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080, Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

     

  

                                          
 

January 24, 2017 

 

Electric Vehicle Infrastructure Transportation Alliance (EVITA) 

c/o Robin Rego, Energy Northwest 

PO Box 968 

Richland, WA 99385-0968 

 

 

To whom it may concern, 

 

The Benton County Commissioners are writing to express their support of the Electric Vehicle 

Infrastructure Transportation Alliance (EVITA) project. We agree with its core objective of 

advocating for sustainable electric transportation infrastructure and taking action to promote 

public and private partnerships for the development of electric vehicle (EV) charging stations 

within the Tri-Cities, Prosser, and the surrounding area. 

 

Additionally, we strongly support EVITA’s affiliation with the Tri-City Development Council’s 

Mid-Columbia Energy Initiative (MCEI) and their mission to focus on economic development 

that promotes sustainability, and the recognition that our region is a leader in helping solve our 

nation’s energy challenges. 

 

We appreciate your time and want to reiterate our support of the EVITA project for sustainable 

electric transportation infrastructure. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

 

James Beaver  Jerome Delvin  Shon Small 

Chairman  Member  Member 

 

Board of County Commissioners 
BENTON COUNTY 

Jerome Delvin 
District 1 

Shon Small 
District 2 

James Beaver 
District 3 

David Sparks 
County Administrator 

 
Loretta Smith Kelty 

Deputy County Administrator 

mailto:commissioners@co.benton.wa.us

	CA - Clerk c.pdf
	Resolution
	Form

	CA - Commissioners f.pdf
	Resolution
	Form

	CA - Facilities i.pdf
	Agenda Summary Contract OPD^PA TI Renovations
	Contract Approval

	CA - Parks u.pdf
	Payment to Total Energy Management
	20170112151507429

	CA - Superior Court kk.pdf
	Resolution
	Form




